

Rotary 
Club of Rohnert Park-Cotati
Sonoma County, California

**Bylaws
of the
Rotary Club
of
Rohnert Park – Cotati**

As Revised & Adopted by the Membership – March 2018

Table of Contents

Article I	Definitions	4
Article II	Board	4
Article III	Election of Directors and Officers	4
Section 3.1	Election Process	4
Section 3.2	Election Results	4
Section 3.3	Vacancy of Office	4
Section 3.4	Vacancy of Office-Elect	5
Article IV	Duties of Officers	5
Section 4.1	President.....	5
Section 4.2	President-elect and President-nominee.....	5
Section 4.3	Immediate Past President, Other Past Presidents, or the President-Elect.....	5
Section 4.4	Secretary.....	5
Section 4.5	Treasurer.....	5
Section 4.6	Sergeant-at-Arms.....	5
Section 4.7	Directors.....	5
Article V	Satellite Club.....	6
Section 5.1	Premise.....	6
Section 5.2	Satellite Board.....	6
Article VI	Meetings.....	6
Section 6.1	Annual Meeting.....	6
Section 6.2	Regular Meetings.....	6
Section 6.3	Satellite Meetings	7
Section 6.4	Meeting Changes	7
Section 6.5	Meeting Quorum.....	7
Section 6.6	Board Meetings.....	7
Section 6.7	Board Meeting Quorum	7
Article VII	Fees and Dues	7
Section 7.1	Admission Fee	7
Section 7.2	Membership Dues.....	7
Section 7.3	Pro-ration of Dues.....	8
Article VIII	Method of Voting	8
Article IX	Five Avenues of Service	8
Article X	Committees	8
Section 10.1	Avenues of Service	8
Section 10.2	The Rotary Foundation	9
Section 10.3	Membership	9
Section 10.4	Club Public Relations	9
Section 10.5	Club Administration	9
Section 10.6	Additional Ad Hoc Committees	9
Article XI	Duties of Committees.....	9
Article XII	Past Presidents Advisory Council	10
Section 12.1	Organization.....	10
Section 12.2	Duties	10
Section 12.3	Meetings.....	10
Article XIII	Leave of Absence	10
Section 13.1	LOA Duration	10
Section 13.2	Meeting Fees.....	10

Article XIV	Finances	11
Section 14.1	Budget Preparation	11
Section 14.2	Separation of Funds	11
Section 14.3	Payment of Bills.....	11
Section 14.4	Review of Finances.....	11
Section 14.5	Bonding of Club Financial Officers.....	11
Section 14.6	Fiscal Year	11
Article XV	Members.....	11
Section 15.1	Active Member	11
Section 15.2	Special Designations.....	12
Article XVI	Method of Electing Members	13
Section 16.1	Proposal	13
Section 16.2	Initial Review by Board.....	13
Section 16.3	Review by Club Members	14
Section 16.4	Approval by Board.....	14
Section 16.5	Induction	14
Section 16.6	Honorary Members	14
Section 16.7	Corporate Membership	14
Section 16.8	Family Membership.....	16
Section 16.9	Senior Members	17
Section 16.10	Young Professional Members	17
Section 16.11	Satellite Members.....	17
Article XVII	Resolutions	17
Article XVIII	Amendments.....	17

Article I Definitions

- Board: The Board of Directors of this club.
- Director: A member of this club's Board of Directors.
- Member: A member, other than an honorary member, of this club.
- RI: Rotary International.
- Year: The twelve-month period that begins on 1 July.

Article II Board

The governing body of this club shall be the board consisting of at least 12 members of this club, namely, the 6 directors and the president, president-elect, president-nominee, secretary, treasurer, and the immediate past president and other members appointed as needed

Article III Election of Directors and Officers

Section 3.1 Election Process

At a regular meeting at least one month prior to the meeting for election of officers, the presiding officer shall ask for nominations by members of the club for president-nominee, secretary, treasurer, 5 Avenue of Service directors and 1 director for the Rotary Foundation. The nominations may be presented by the president-elect, a nominating committee, by members from the floor, or by a combination of any or all as the club may determine. If it is determined to use a nominating committee, such committee shall be appointed as the club may determine. The nominations duly made shall be placed on a ballot in alphabetical order under each office and shall be voted for at the annual meeting. The candidates for president-nominee, secretary, and treasurer receiving a majority of the votes shall be declared elected to their respective offices. The director candidates for each of the Avenues of Service and the Rotary Foundation receiving a majority of the votes shall be declared elected as directors for their respective offices and shall assume office on the first day of July immediately following the election. The candidate for president-nominee elected in such balloting shall serve as a director for the balance of the current Rotary year immediately following election. Commencing on July 1 in the subsequent Rotary year, the president-nominee shall take the title of president-elect and will continue to serve as a director for that year. On July 1 of the 2rd Rotary year following the election, the president-elect shall assume office as club president.

Section 3.2 Election Results

The officers and directors, so elected, together with the immediate past president shall constitute the board. The president-elect shall select some member of the club to act as sergeant-at-arms during his/her term as president.

Section 3.3 Vacancy of Office

A vacancy in the board or any office shall be filled by action of the remaining directors.

Section 3.4 Vacancy of Office-Elect

A vacancy in the position of any officer-elect or director-elect shall be filled by action of the remaining directors-elect.

Article IV Duties of Officers

Section 4.1 President.

It shall be the duty of the president to preside at meetings of the club and the board and to perform other duties as ordinarily pertain to the office of president.

Section 4.2 President-elect and President-nominee.

It shall be the duty of the president-elect and president-nominee to serve as a director and to perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the president or the board.

Section 4.3 Immediate Past President, Other Past Presidents, or the President-Elect.

It shall be the duty of the immediate past president, or other past presidents to preside at meetings of the club and the board in the absence of the president and to perform other duties as ordinarily pertain to the office of immediate past president. For purposes of preparatory development, the president-elect may be asked to preside over a meeting at the discretion of the president.

Section 4.4 Secretary.

It shall be the duty of the secretary to keep membership records; record attendance at meetings; send out notices of club, board, and committee meetings; record and preserve the minutes of such meetings; report as required to RI, including the semiannual reports of membership on 1 January and 1 July of each year, which shall include per capita dues for all members and prorated dues for active members who have been elected to membership in the club since the start of the July or January semiannual reporting period; report changes in membership; provide the monthly attendance report, which shall be made to the district governor within 15 days of the last meeting of the month; collect and remit RI official magazine subscriptions; and perform other duties as usually pertain to the office of secretary.

Section 4.5 Treasurer.

It shall be the duty of the treasurer to have custody of all funds, accounting for it to the club annually and at any other time upon demand by the board, and to perform other duties as pertains to the office of treasurer. Upon retirement from office, the treasurer shall turn over to the incoming treasurer or to the president all funds, books of accounts, and any other club property.

Section 4.6 Sergeant-at-Arms.

The duties of the sergeant-at-arms shall be such as are usually prescribed for such office and other duties as may be prescribed by the president or the board. This position is not a member of the board.

Section 4.7 Directors.

It shall be the duty of each of the directors to preside over one of the Five Avenues of Service Committees; Club Service, Community Service, International Service, Vocational Service, Youth Service; and over the Rotary Foundation Committee.

Article V Satellite Club

At its sole discretion, the board may establish a Satellite Club. Once so established, the Satellite club shall be named the Rotary Satellite Club of Rohnert Park-Cotati, plus the designator of when they meet (Ex. Evening, Sundown, etc.)

Section 5.1 Premise

Satellite clubs provide a new option for creating Rotary clubs. A satellite club functions as a short-term, transitional step on the way to becoming a full, independent Rotary club.

The purpose of a Satellite club is to allow Rotary membership for those who may not be able to meet at the time the sponsor club meets. It also allows Rotary membership for a group that is smaller than the 20 members required to start an independent Rotary club, since only 8 members are required for a Satellite Club.

As Satellite club membership grows, once it reached 20 or more members, it can apply to Rotary International to become its own, full and independent Rotary club.

Section 5.2 Satellite Board

The Satellite Club may set up its own board, except that instead of a president, a Satellite club has a Chair who reports to the board of the Rotary Club of Rohnert Park-Cotati.

Members of the sponsor club should be prepared to mentor, train and advise Satellite club members and designated officers.

Article VI Meetings

Section 6.1 Annual Meeting.

An annual meeting of this club shall be held on the fourth Tuesday in July of each year, at which time the election of officers and directors to serve for the following Rotary year shall take place.

6.1.1 In the event that the fourth Tuesday is unavailable, the annual meeting shall be held the first available Tuesday in August.

6.1.2 Due notice of such change shall be given to all members of the club at least 10 days prior to the scheduled meeting via electronic mail to the member's address as recorded in the club directory.

Section 6.2 Regular Meetings

The regular meetings of this club shall be held weekly, on Tuesday (day) at 7:15 AM (time).

All members excepting an honorary member (or member excused pursuant to the standard Rotary club constitution) in good standing in this club, on the day of the regular meeting, must be counted as present or absent, and attendance must be evidenced by the member's being present for at least sixty (60) percent

of the time devoted to the regular meeting, either at this club or at any other Rotary club, or as otherwise provided in the standard Rotary club constitution, article 9, sections 1 and 2.

Section 6.3 Satellite Meetings

Members of a Satellite Club are Active members of this club that regularly meet at a different time and/or place, as specified.

Section 6.4 Meeting Changes

Due notice of any changes in or canceling of the regular meeting shall be given to all members of the club.

When known, such notice shall be given in person at a regular meeting of the club, at least one week ahead of the known change. Such notice shall also be disseminated via electronic mail to all members at least one week ahead of the known change.

In the event of an unforeseen change in less than the one week notice requirement, all members shall be notified via electronic mail at the earliest reasonable opportunity.

Section 6.5 Meeting Quorum

One-third of the current, active membership shall constitute a quorum at the annual and regular meetings of this club.

Section 6.6 Board Meetings

Regular meetings of the board shall be held once each month, on an agreed upon date. Special meetings of the board shall be called by the president, whenever deemed necessary, or upon the request of two (2) directors, due notice having been given.

Section 6.7 Board Meeting Quorum

A majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum of the board.

Article VII Fees and Dues

Section 7.1 Admission Fee

An admission fee of \$ 100.00 may be required by the club and if instituted, is to be paid before the applicant can qualify as a member, except as provided for in the Standard Rotary Club Constitution, This fee covers the cost of induction materials, including but not limited to the Rotary pin, badge, banner, shirts, and related documents.

7.1.1 For Corporate Members, an admission fee may be required of each designee.

7.1.2 For Family Members, an admission fee may be required of each family member.

Section 7.2 Membership Dues

7.2.1 The membership dues for active, for the primary corporate members and for primary family members shall be \$200.00 per annum, payable on the first day of June.

- 7.2.2 Membership dues for additional corporate designees shall be \$150 per annum, payable on the first day of June
- 7.2.3 Membership dues for additional family members shall be \$150 per annum, payable by the first day of June.
- 7.2.4 Membership dues for Senior Members shall be \$150 per annum, payable on the first day of June
- 7.2.5 Membership dues for the Young Professional Members shall be \$100 per annum for the first two years of membership, payable on the first day of June. Thereafter, the dues shall be the same as for Active Members.

Section 7.3 Pro-ration of Dues

Rotary International dues will be pro-rated after January 1 to the semi-annual dues amount.

Article VIII Method of Voting

The business of this club shall be transacted by *viva voce* (*live voice*) vote except the election of officers and directors, which shall be by ballot. The board may determine that a specific resolution be considered by ballot rather than by *viva voce* vote.

Article IX Five Avenues of Service

The five Avenues of Service are the philosophical and practical framework for the work of this Rotary club. They are Club Service, Community Service, International Service, Vocational Service, and Youth Service. This club will be active in each of the five Avenues of Service.

Article X Committees

Club committees are charged with carrying out the annual and long-range goals of the club based on the five Avenues of Service. The president-elect, the president-nominee, the president, and the immediate past president should work together to ensure continuity of leadership and succession planning. When feasible, committee members should be appointed to the same committee for three years to ensure consistency. The president and the president-elect are responsible for appointing committee members to fill vacancies, appointing committee chairs, and conducting planning meetings prior to the start of the year in office. It is recommended that the chair have previous experience as a member of the committee. Standing committees should be appointed as follows:

Section 10.1 Avenues of Service

- Club Service
- Community Service

- International Service
- Vocational Service
- Youth Service

Each Avenue of Service Director shall select a committee to develop and implement projects suitable to that avenue of service and in concert with club goals to address the needs of the communities served.

Section 10.2 The Rotary Foundation

The club’s Rotary Foundation Director shall select a committee to develop and implement plans to support The Rotary Foundation through both financial contributions and program participation.

Section 10.3 Membership

This committee, which reports to the Club Service Director, should develop and implement a comprehensive plan for the recruitment and retention of members.

Section 10.4 Club Public Relations

This committee, which reports to the Club Service Director, should develop and implement plans to provide the public with information about Rotary and to promote the club’s service projects and activities.

Section 10.5 Club Administration

This committee, which reports to the Club Service Director should conduct activities associated with the effective operation of the club.

- Website & Social Media
- Meeting and Event Photography
- Club Historian
- Club Newsletter
- Audio/Visual
-

Section 10.6 Additional Ad Hoc Committees

Additional ad hoc committees may be appointed by the president or board as needed.

10.6.1 The president shall be an *ex officio (by right of office)* member of all committees and, as such, shall have all the privileges of membership thereon.

10.6.2 Each committee shall transact its business as is delegated to it in these bylaws and such additional business as may be referred to it by the president or the board. Except where special authority is given by the board, such committees shall not take action until a report has been made and approved by the board.

10.6.3 Each chair shall be responsible for regular meetings and activities of the committee, shall supervise and coordinate the work of the committee, and shall report to the board on all committee activities.

Article XI Duties of Committees

The duties of all committees shall be established and reviewed by the president for his or her year. In declaring the duties of each, the president shall reference to appropriate RI materials. Each Avenue of

Service Director and the Rotary Foundation Director shall select a committee to develop and implement projects suitable to that avenue of service and in concert with club goals to address the needs of the communities served and report to the club on a regular basis.

Each committee shall have a specific mandate, clearly defined goals, and action plans established by the beginning of each year for implementation during the course of the year. It shall be the primary responsibility of the president-elect to provide the necessary leadership to prepare a recommendation for club committees, mandates, goals, and plans for presentation to the board in advance of the commencement of the year as noted above.

Article XII Past Presidents Advisory Council

Section 12.1 Organization

The Past Presidents Advisory Council (PPAC) shall be composed of all Past Presidents of this Club. The President, President-Elect and President-Nominee shall be an ex officio member of the Council, except that the President-Nominee and President-Elect shall be non-voting members of the Council.

If active, the Chair of the Satellite Club shall be an ex officio member of the Council. Also any past Satellite Club Chairs shall be members of the Council.

Section 12.2 Duties

The Past Presidents Advisory Council shall act in an advisory capacity to the President and the Board of Directors, as well as to any of the club's standing or ad hoc committees.

The Council may be used to review proposed resolutions or amendments to the Club By-Laws and make recommendations to the Board before such proposed resolutions or amendments are submitted to the membership for a vote.

Section 12.3 Meetings

The Past Presidents Advisory Council shall meet at least once annually at a time and place designated by the Council Chairperson.

Article XIII Leave of Absence

Upon written application to the board, setting forth good and sufficient cause, leave of absence (LOA) may be granted excusing a member from attending the meetings of the club for a specified length of time.

Section 13.1 LOA Duration

The maximum time for any single request shall not be more than 90 days. If needed, additional LOA instances may be requested and granted at the discretion of the board.

Section 13.2 Meeting Fees

While on LOA, a member shall be exempted from paying the monthly meeting fees (meals).

Article XIV Finances

Section 14.1 Budget Preparation

Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the President-elect and board-elect shall prepare a budget of estimated income and expenditures for the coming year, which shall stand as the limit of expenditures for these purposes, unless otherwise ordered by action of the board. The budget shall be broken into two separate parts: one in respect of club operations and one in respect of charitable/service operations.

Section 14.2 Separation of Funds

The club funds shall be divided into two separate parts: club operations and service projects. The treasurer shall deposit all club operations funds in a bank, named by the board. All funds identified as charitable or service operations funds shall be forwarded to the treasurer of the Rohnert Park-Cotati Rotary Foundation.

Section 14.3 Payment of Bills

All bills shall be paid by the treasurer or other authorized officer only when approved in writing by two other officers or directors.

Section 14.4 Review of Finances

A thorough, independent review of all financial transactions by a qualified person shall be made once each year.

Section 14.5 Bonding of Club Financial Officers

Officers having charge or control of club funds shall give bond as required by the board for the safe custody of the funds of the club, cost of bond to be borne by the club.

Section 14.6 Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of this club shall extend from 1 July to 30 June

Article XV Members

Section 15.1 Active Member

An Active Member shall be an adult person of good character and good business, professional and/or community reputation, who is engaged as a proprietor, partner, corporate officer, manager, or employee of any worthy and recognized business or profession, or who has retired from any such position, or who is a community leader who has demonstrated through personal involvement in community affairs a commitment to service and the Object of Rotary, and who should have his or her place of business or residence located in or near the city limits of Rohnert Park or Cotati. An active member shall pay full dues and fees set for active membership and is expected to be actively engaged with club operations, projects and events. The election of Active Members shall follow the procedure outlined in Article XV below, except that any current Honorary Member, Family Member, Senior Member or Corporate Member designee who wishes to convert to regular Active membership (no special designations) need only obtain board approval.

Section 15.2 Special Designations

At its sole discretion, the Board of Directors may establish Special Designations for Membership.

Special Designations shall provide an opportunity for individuals and groups to share membership in the club, or to participate and engage with the club at a reduced cost.

15.2.1 Premise

Special membership categories will increase the club's ability to attract and retain a qualified and diverse base of professional and community minded individuals within the community. It allows for flexibility and recognizes the tremendous mobility that is the norm within the current cultural and corporate environment.

15.2.2 Honorary Member

An Honorary Member is a person who has distinguished himself or herself by meritorious service in the furtherance of Rotary ideals or a person who is considered a friend of Rotary for his or her permanent support of Rotary's cause and who has been elected by the members as an Honorary Member. An Honorary Member shall be exempt from the payment of any dues and fees but shall be required to pay for any meals at meetings he or she attends during the Rotary year. An Honorary Member shall have no vote and shall not be eligible to hold any office in this Club or be a Director of this Club. An Honorary Member may serve on Club Committees but shall not serve as a Committee Chair. The election of an Honorary Member shall follow the procedure for electing Active Members in Article XV, except that any current Active Member who wishes to convert to Honorary membership need only obtain board approval. Likewise, and Honorary Member who wishes to convert to Active Membership need only obtain board approval.

15.2.3 Corporate Member

A Corporate Membership shall provide an opportunity for a company, as an entity and via an executive member of its organization, to become a member of the Rotary Club of Rohnert Park – Cotati.

A Corporate Member shall be a reputable and established business, corporation, institution or government entity located in or near the city limits of Rohnert Park or Cotati. Corporate members may appoint up to four (4) designees, one of whom should be a member of the business's executive team. Designees shall be adult persons of good character and good business, professional and/or community reputation, who are engaged as full-time employees of the Corporate Member. Corporate Members designees shall pay full Rotary International dues and full District 5130 dues, however, only the Corporate Member as an entity shall pay Club dues. . The executive Corporate Members shall pay the monthly meal invoice which may be shared by all corporate designees, except when more than one designee attends a meeting, the additional designees shall pay for meals at the meeting they attend. The election of a Corporate Member and each of its designees shall follow the procedure for electing Active Members in Article XV.

All Corporate Member designees will be reported to Rotary International as active members of the club.

15.2.4 Family Member

A Family Member is a person who meets all of the qualifications of an Active Member as described in Section 14.1 above, and is directly related to a primary, Active Member, as part of their nuclear family, defined as consisting of the parent/s and their children (one or more). A Family Member may also be

part of a single-parent family or extended family, except that the extended family connection is limited only to the parents of the primary Active Member or their spouse.

All Family Members shall pay full Rotary International dues and full District 5130 dues, however, only the primary Family Member shall pay annual Club dues. The primary Family Members shall pay the monthly meal invoice which may be shared by all other family members, except when more than one family member attends a meeting, the additional family members shall pay for meals at the meeting they attend.

All Family Members have the same rights and responsibilities as an Active Member.

15.2.5 Senior Member

A Senior Member is a person who meets all of the qualifications of an Active Member as described in Section 14.1 above, who is at least 70 years old, and who has been a Rotarian for at least 5 years. A Senior Member has all of the same rights and responsibilities as an Active Member.

15.2.6 Young Professional

A Young Professional is a person who meets all of the qualifications of an Active Member as described in Section 14.1 above, but who is under 40 years of age at time of induction. A Young Professional Member has the same rights and responsibilities as an Active Member.

15.2.7 Satellite Member

Satellite Members are Active members of this club pursuant to Section 14.1 of this Article, who meet at a different time and/or location.

Article XVI Method of Electing Members

Section 16.1 Proposal

16.1.1 A prospective member, proposed and sponsored by an active member of the club, shall submit their application to the club secretary, who will then forward to the board for initial review.

16.1.2 A transferring or former member of another club may be proposed to active membership by the former club. Such a transferring or former member shall submit their application to the club secretary, who will then forward to the board for initial review.

16.1.3 A member of the community may also propose their own membership in the club. Such a community member shall submit their application to the club secretary, who will then forward to the board for initial review.

Section 16.2 Initial Review by Board

The board shall ensure that the proposed candidate meets all the membership requirements of the standard Rotary club constitution.

The board shall also ensure that the proposed candidate has attended at least three club related functions (meetings, events, fundraisers, projects).

Section 16.3 Review by Club Members

Upon initial review of the board, the proposed member's name and classification shall be published via electronic mail to all club members.

Individual members may submit a written objection to the proposal, stating specific reasons.

Section 16.4 Approval by Board

The board shall approve or disapprove the proposal within 30 days of its submission and shall notify the candidate and their sponsor, through the club secretary, of its decision.

If no written objection to the proposal, stating reasons, is received by the board from any member (other than honorary) of the club within seven (7) days following publication of information about the prospective member, that person, upon payment of the admission fee and annual dues (if not honorary membership), as prescribed in these bylaws, shall be considered to be elected to membership.

If any such objection has been filed with the board, it shall vote on this matter at its next meeting. If approved despite the objection, the proposed member, upon payment of the admission fee and annual dues (if not honorary membership), shall be considered to be elected to membership.

Section 16.5 Induction

Following approval of the election by the board, the president shall arrange for the new member's induction, membership card, and new member Rotary literature. In addition, the president or secretary will report the new member information to RI and the president will assign a member to assist with the new member's assimilation to the club as well as assign the new member to a club project or function.

Section 16.6 Honorary Members

The club may elect, in accordance with the standard Rotary club constitution, honorary members proposed by the board. Honorary members will not be reported to RI.

Section 16.7 Corporate Membership

16.7.1 Approval.

A corporate entity or organization can become an eligible corporate member of the Rotary club through the approval process outlined in this Article.

16.7.2 Designees.

Once an entity becomes an eligible corporate member through the established approval process, it may appoint up to four persons to be its designees, one of whom must be a member of that entity's senior executive group; the others can be individuals in a managerial capacity or higher, employed full time by the eligible corporation. Each designee must meet the criteria for active membership and must complete the approval process.

16.7.3 Changing designees.

The club will determine the ability of the eligible corporation to change any of its designees so long as at all times one of them is a member of the eligible corporation's senior executive group. Each new designee must meet the criteria for active membership and must complete the approval process.

16.7.4 Inductions.

Corporate member designees will be formally inducted into the club as established in Section 15.6.

16.7.5 Attendance.

The attendance requirement for an eligible corporation as an entity shall be the same as an Active Member, except that the attendance of each of the designees shall be accumulated and count towards the corporation's attendance.

16.7.6 Classification.

The classification of the eligible corporation and its designees will be established by the club.

16.7.7 RI registration.

Only the executive designee will be reported to Rotary International as an official member of the Rotary club and will be noted in the club roster as the executive designee. Additional corporate designees will only be listed in the club roster, but will not be reported to Rotary International.

16.7.8 Badges.

Badge references will be determined by the club.

16.7.9 Votes and quorum.

For the purpose of general meetings and club matters, the corporate member as an entity shall have one vote, which may be cast by any one of the designees.

16.7.10 Holding office.

Each designee, as an individual, may hold any office in the club to which the designee is elected in the normal way, except that no more than one (1) designee from any corporate member may hold an office at any one time. A corporate designee so elected may not rely on the other corporate designees to fulfill the roles of the office to which they are elected and must be generally available for meeting and attendance requirements of the office.

16.7.11 Conversion.

A designee of the eligible corporation, while still an employee of the eligible corporation, may convert to an individual membership of the club at any time

A designee who has been a member, upon leaving the employ of the corporation, may convert his/her membership to an individual membership.

16.7.12 Bulletin and communication.

Each designee will receive the club's weekly bulletin/newsletter and regular club communications.

16.7.13 Receipt of The Rotarian or Rotary regional magazine.

As active members with Rotary International, each designee will receive a copy of the Rotarian Magazine.

16.7.14 Public liability cover.

The corporate member designees will be included under the respective club liability insurance while participating in any approved club activities or projects, if applicable.

16.7.15 Participation in youth activities.

The corporate member designees are expected to abide by all restrictions, policies, and procedures with respect to club activities involving youth.

16.7.16 Termination.

The process for terminating the membership of a designee or the eligible corporation will be the same as for active members, as outlined in Article 12 of the Standard Rotary Club Constitution.

Section 16.8 Family Membership

A Family Membership shall provide an opportunity for additional members of a Rotarian's family, to become a member of the Rotary Club of Rohnert Park – Cotati at a reduced cost.

16.8.1 Approval.

Any specified family members can become members of the Rotary club through the approval process outlined in this Article.

16.8.2 Inductions.

Family members will be formally inducted into the club as established in Section 15.6.

16.8.3 Attendance.

The attendance requirement for each Family member shall be the same as for an Active member.

16.8.4 Classification.

The classification of each family member will be established by the club.

16.8.5 RI registration.

All family members will be reported to Rotary International as official members of the Rotary club and will be noted in the club roster.

16.8.6 Badges.

Badge references will be determined by the club.

16.8.7 Votes and quorum.

For the purpose of general meetings and club matters, each family member shall have one vote.

16.8.8 Holding office.

Each family member may hold any office in the club to which they are elected.

16.8.9 Conversion.

Any current Family Member who wishes to convert to Active Membership (no special designation) need only obtain board approval and begin paying the annual club dues. Likewise, any Active Member who wishes to convert to Family membership need only obtain board approval.

16.8.10 Bulletin and communication.

Each family member will receive the club's weekly bulletin/newsletter and regular club communications.

16.8.11 Receipt of The Rotarian or Rotary regional magazine.

As active members with Rotary International, each designee will receive a copy of the Rotarian Magazine.

16.8.12 Public liability cover.

All family members will be included under the respective club liability insurance while participating in any approved club activities or projects, if applicable.

16.8.13 Participation in youth activities.

All family members are expected to abide by all restrictions, policies, and procedures with respect to club activities involving youth.

16.8.14 Termination.

The process for terminating the membership of any family member will be the same as for active members, as outlined in Article 12 of the Standard Rotary Club Constitution.

Section 16.9 Senior Members

The club may elect, in accordance with the standard Rotary club constitution, Senior Members proposed by the board.

Section 16.10 Young Professional Members

The club may elect, in accordance with the standard Rotary club constitution, Young Professional members proposed by the board.

Section 16.11 Satellite Members

The club may elect, in accordance with the standard Rotary club constitution, Satellite Members proposed by the board.

Article XVII Resolutions

The club shall not consider any resolution or motion to commit the club on any matter until the board has considered it. Such resolutions or motions, if offered at a club meeting, shall be referred to the board without discussion.

- Order of Business
- Meeting called to order.
- Introduction of visitors.
- Correspondence, announcements, and Rotary information.
- Committee reports if any.
- Any unfinished business.
- Any new business.
- Address or other program features.
- Adjournment.

Article XVIII Amendments

These bylaws may be amended at any regular club meeting, a quorum being present, by a two-thirds vote of all members present, provided that notice of such proposed amendment shall have been electronically

mailed, physically mailed or personally delivered to each member by the club secretary, or designee, at least ten (10) days before such meeting. For purposes of this requirement, electronic mail shall include a “Delivery” request to allow affirmative notification to the club secretary that the amendment has been received. No amendment or addition to these bylaws can be made which is not in harmony with the standard Rotary club constitution and with the constitution and bylaws of RI.

Adopted this 27th day of March, 2018 by the members of the Rotary Club of Rohnert Park – Cotati and the Board of Directors.

Heather-Ann Young, *President*
Peggy Wyman, *Immediate Past President*
Pat Miller, *President-Elect*
Paula Reinhold, *Secretary*
Gary Jeffcoat, *Treasurer*
Wulff Reinhold, *Club Service Director*
Bob Stewart, *Community Service Director*
Mike Pastryk, *International Service Director*
Dale Ann Knight, *Rotary Foundation Committee Director*
Gus Trevena, *Vocational Service Director*
Ken McCoy, *Youth Service Director*

Prior Revisions

August 2015
March 2014
December 2013
January 2008